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u.s. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
1310 W. Clairemont Ave.
Ball Claire, WI 54701
Phone: (715)832-9019 FAX: (715)832--1147

Citation and Notification of Penalty

To:
U.S. Posfal Service Minn-St.Paul NDC
and its successors
3165 Lexington A-venue S.
Bagan, MN 55121-2288

WpedioD Number:
lJLspecttoD Date(s):
IsS'OalXe Date:

313171537
04/lS/201().(J4/16/2010 '
0612512010

IDspeedOD Site:
3165 l.exington Avenue S.
Eagan. MN 55121-2288

T1uJ violaticm(s) described in 'this Citation
anti NiJtijiCtuzon of Penally is (are) a1lI!ged ­
ro /rave QCCUTTed on 07 about tM diiy(sJ the.
inspecdO'J't. was mad~ unless otherwise
indicaredwithin The descnplion given belqw~ .

This Citation and Notificadon of PeDalty (this Citation) describe's violations ofthe OccupatioDal SafetY and Health
Act of 1970. The penalty(les) listed herein is (are) based on these vlolations. You IIll,lSt abate the violatious
referred co in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the penalties proposed, unless within IS working days
(exc1udiDg weekends and Federal holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification ofPenalty you mail
a notice of contest to the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above. Please refer to the
enclosed booklet (OSHA 3000) whicb outlines your rigJ1ts and responsibilities and which should be tead in
conjunction with this form. Issuance of this Citation does not constitute a findini that a. violation of the Act has
QCCUJ:re<! unless theIe is a failure to contest as provided for in the Aet or, if contested. unless this Citation is
affirmed by !:he Review Commission or a COUlt.

Posting ~ The law requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posred f.mmedjately in a
prominent place at or near the location of the vio1atiOll(s) cited herein, or , if it is not practicable because of the
nature of the employer's operations, where it will be readUy observable by all affected employees. This Citation
must remain posted until me vioJation(s) cited herein has (have) been abated. or for 3 working days (excluding
weekends and Federal holidays), whichever is longer. The peua1ty dollar IJD01lIlts ueed not he posted and DUuy
be marked out or covered up prior to posWig.

Informal Conference M An informal conference is not required. However. if you wish to have such a
conference you may request one with I:he Area Director during !:be 15 working day contest period. During sucb
an infonna! conference you may present any evidence or views which you believe would support an adjustment
to the citation(s) and/or pcnalty(ies).
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If you lQ'e considering a request for an informal conference to discuss any issues ;related to this Citation I and
Notification of Penalty. you must take care to scbedu1e it early enough to allow time to contest after the informal
conference, sbou.1d you decide to do so. Therefore) it 1s suggested you telephone rather than wrlte. Please eep
in mind that a written tetter of intent to contest must be submitted to the Area Dir~rwithin 15 working days of
your receipt of this Citation. The running of this comest period is not interrupret'l by an Informal conference.

When YO\1 have scheduled the informal ronference, please complete, remove and post the page 5 Notice to
Employees next to this Citation 'and Notification of PeQalty as soon as the time. dale, and place of !he lnfotmal
confeJ:enCe have been determined. Be suro to bring to the confereD.ce any and au supporting documentB1:iOll of
existing conditions as well as any aba.tcment steps taken thus far. If coJlditions wutant, we can enter into an
informal settlemtD1 agn:ernent which amicably resolves this matter without litigation or contest.

Right to Contest - You have the right to contest this Citation and Notiticati.on of Penalty. Yau may contest
aU citation itflms or only individoal items. You ntay also contest proposed penalties and/or abatement dates witliout
CODieSdn& the underlying violations. Up.le;ts you infgrm. tile Area 1lIrytnr IDwritIng that you iDtend to cotd'est
the gtatfOg(ll) '''1/0[ proposed PfDa1g'llts) withlg 15 1!D't'kipg daD gf!!"- receipt. 1Ile dtptlouls) and :'the
prppo.wd ppaJtyCftsl wDl become a "nal order of the QecgPlltional Safe pnd Health Review Commll~
and may DOt be reyigwed by anY court or Blep£f.

Penalty Payment - Penalties are due within l' working days of receipt of this notification unless COIl.t.eSted or
within 1S working day, ofsIgning an informal settlement aareemem:. (Sec the enclosed bOoklet and the additional
Inforrnatioo provJdcd related to the Debt COUeaiOD Act of 19S2.) Make your check or J11tlDeY order payab)¢ to
"DOL-OSHA.". Please indicate the Inspection Number on the remitalnCe.

OSHA does not agree to any ~tio.QS or conditions or endorsements put on any check: or money onlcr for less
than the fWl amount due. and will cash the c:heck or money order as if these resUietions, conditions, or
cndorseInettts do not exist. '

NotIfteatiOQ of Corudive Ac::i:ioII • For BSk violation which you. do not contest, you. are required by 29 eFR
1903.19 to submit an Abatement Certification to the Area Director of tile OSHA office issuinl the citation and
idemified above. The cerdfieation IDY8 be sent by you within 10 calendar dan of £he abatement date indicated
on the citation. Pot WDltul and Repeat violations, docume.DtS (examples: photos, copies of receipts, traillinS
records, etc.) dewoDstBting that abatomeDt Is complete must accompany the _certification. Where the citation: is
classIfied as Serious and the citations stares that abateIUent docmncntation is required, documems such as tOOse
descrlbcd above are requited to be snbm.ltted along with tbe abatement certificate. If the eitation indicates that !he
violation was corrected during the lnspection. no abatm1ent certifleation is required for that item. '

All abaummt verification documents J1lDSt contain the foD.ow:lng information: 1) Your name and addxess; 2)
the inspection number (found on the front pace); 3) the citation and citation Item number(s) to which the
submission relaic6; 4) & statement Ihat the infonmtion is SCCI.lnlte; 5) the siaJ:Wure of the employer or employers
authortzed representative; 6} the date the hazard was corrected; 7) a brief starement of bow the hmIrd was
correctcd.; and 8) a stateJJJem that. affected employees and their represontatives have been infonned of the
ab1Itemeut.

The law a1sQ requires a copy of all abatement: verification d<x'JJrnents. required by 29 CFR. 1903.19 to be sent to
OSHA. also be posted at me location where the 'Violation appeared aDd the corrective action took place.

- 0SaA-2{Rev. 7100)
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EmployerDiscrimination UnlawflJI ~ The law prohIbits discrimination by an employer against an employee
for filing a complaint or for exercising any rights under this Act. An employee who believes that he/she has been
discriminated against may file a complaint no later than. 30 days after the discrimination occurred with the 'U.S.
Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above.

Employer Rights and Responsibilities -'The enclosed book:tet (OSHA 30(0) outlines additional employer
rights and responsibilities and should be read in conjunction with this notification.

Inspection Activity Data - Yau should be aware that OSHA publishes information on its inspectiori and
citation activity on the Internet under the provisions of the ElectrOnic Freedom of Infonnation Act. .The
information related to your inspection will be available 30 calendar days after the Citation Issuance Date. You. are
encouraged to review rhe infot:mation conceming your estabUshment at WWW.OSHA.GOV. If you ha.v~ any
dispute with the accuracy of the infbrmation displayed, please contact tbis office. .

Page 3 of 13 0SHA-2(Rtv. 7/1)0)
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Company:
Address: .
City/State:

U.S. Postal Service Minn-St.Paul Nne
3165 Lexington Avenue S.
Balan. MN "1212288

Inspection Number. 313177537

29 CPR 1903.19 requlles employers, within 10 calendat days ofthe abatement date, to certify to OSHA each cited
item h8$ been corrected; except those items that were verified abated by me Compliance Officer IlIld ate annocated
in the citation eitl1er ·Corrected During In.';pectiOIl" or uQuick Pix". Your certification must explain the specific
~on taken with regard to each cited item. This form ""as prepared to serve as reminder and to aid yml in
submitting the required information. Brief tenD5 such as "corrected" or "in compliance~ are NOT acceptable..
In addition. the employer must submit to dJe Area Director docnmentation demonstrating that each willful .and
repeat 'violation aDd each serious violation identified "Docl1Illel1tanon Required" on the Citation has been abated.
Documents needed to assure that corrective action has been taken include photographs. videos. work onters,
purchase orders, standard~ing procedures, copies of any wriae~ programs. noise or a:tmospheric monitoring
data, specifications (dimensions, rnaterials, etC.), or descriptions ofpersonal protective equipment, administr.l.1:ive
conttols, ,and engineering controls.

Citation
Number

Item
Number Aba.te.ment Date and Action Taken

I attest that the information in this document is accurate and that a copy has been/will be posted for three (3) days.

Signature

-Page 4 of 19 OSHA-2(.Rev. 1IflO)
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U.S. Departlnent of Labor
Ocwpation&1 Safety and Health AdmiDistraUoD.

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES

The law gives an empioyee or hislher reptesentalive tbe opportunity to Object to any abatement date set for a. violation ifhe1sb.e

believes the date to be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed to the TJ.S. Depamneo.t of Labor Area Office at the address

shown above an4 postmarked within IS working days (excluding weekends and Federal holidays) of the receipt by' the

employer of this Citation and Notification of Peoalty.

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE

An informal conference has been scheduled with OSHA to discuss the citation(s) issued on

06/2512010. The conference will be held a.t the OSHA office located at 1310 W. Clairem.oht

Ave., Ban Claire, WI, 54701 On at _

representatives of employees bave a right to attend an monnal conference.

Employees and/or

Page 5 of 13 QSHA-2(RCv.7/OO)



__ 06/~O/10~: 18 FAX 312 353 8478

06/25/2010 12:57 FAX 1 715 832 1147

CHICAGO OSHA/FSO

USDOL OSHA Be

. ;".:" ~,:.

141007

10;)007

U..S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Inspection Number: 313177537
lospedionDates: 04/15/2010-04/16/2010
Issuaace Date: 06/25/2010

Company Name:
InspedioD Site:

U.S. Posml service Minn-St.Paul NDC
3165 Lexington Avenue S., Eagan, MN 55121-2288

Citation 1 Item 1 Type ofVioIation: Willful

29 CPR 1910.332(b)(1): Employees were noc trained in and familiar with the safety-related work practices
required by 29 CPR. 1910.331 th.-ough 29 CPR 1910.S35 that pertained to their respective job assignments:

-- ..~*' ••

(a) Throughout the U.S. Postal Service MiIm-St.Paul NDe; Man Processing EquipIIicut Mechanics
(MPEMs). Building Equipment Mechanics (DBMs), and Electronic Teclm.lcians (BTs) were
exposed to live electrical parts 110 volts up to and iocJuWng 480 ~o1ts and were not trained and
familiar with safety-related work: practices.

Aba.remem note: Abatement certification and documentation are required.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED

Date By Which ViolaeionMnst be Abated:
Proposed Penalty:

07/0712010
$ 70000.00

see pages 1 through S of this Citation and Notification ofPer.alty for infonnat.lon on employer and employee riglml and responsibilities.

PageS of 13 - OSHA-2{Rev. 1/00)
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u.s. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety IUl4 Health Administration

Citation and Nqtification of Penalty

InspectioD Number: 313177537
I~J)atest04/15/2010-04/1612010

Issuance Date: 06/25/2010

Company Name:
lDspection Site:

U.S. Postal SeJ;Vice Minn-St.Paul NDC
3165 Lexington Avenue S., Eagan, MN 55121-2288

The alleged violations below have been grouped because they involve similar or related hazards that may increase
the potential for lIUuzy resulting from an accident.

-
Citation 1 Item 2a Type of Violation: Willful -"-' ..

29 CFR 1910.333(a)(I): Live parts to which an employee could be exposed were not d8eDergized before me
employee worked on or near them: •

(a) Throughout the U.S. Postal Service Minn-Sr.Paul NDC; Mail Processing Equipment Mechanics·
(MPEMs) , were exposed to electric shock and arc blast/flash hazards while performing
troubleshooting on iUses wit1Wl electric cabinets, panels, and ~closurcs which were not
deenergized for voltages up to and including 480 voltS.

.
(b) Throughout the U.S. Postal Service MiIm-St.Paul NDe; Mail Processing Equipment Mecbanics

(MPEMs), Buildq Equipment Mechanics (DBMs). and Electronic Tee:tJ.nicians (ETs) were
exposed to electric shock and arc bIast/tJash hazards whUe performing maintenance aDd repair work
on electric circuits within cabinets. pmels, and enclosnres which had live bare conductors exposed
at the input of the energy isolation disconnects for voltqes up to and inclUding 480 volts.

Abatement note: Abatement certification and documentation are requited.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQl.1lRED'

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated:
Proposed Penalty;

07/07/2010
$ 70000.00

Citation and Notifil:ation of Pem.It.y Pagc7of13 0SHA-2(R.ev. 7JOI!)
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U.s. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Citation and Notification 01 Penalty

Inspection Number. 313177537
IDspectIonDates:04/1Sl2010-04/16/2010
Issuance Date: 0612512010

Company Name: U.S. Postal Service Minn..st.Panl NDe
Inspection Site: 3165 Lexington Avenue S., Eagan. MN 55121-2288

Citation 1 Item 2b Type of Violation: Willful

29 CPR 1910.333(a)(2): Where exposed nve parts were not deenerglzed, other safety-related wonc practices were
not used to protect employees who could be expOl!ed to the electrical hazards involved:

-
(a) Throughou~ the U.S. Postal Service Minu-St.Paul NDC; Mail Processlng Equipment MecltaTl;cE;

(MPEMs), Building Equipment ~..banics (BEMs), and Electronic Technicians (ETs) performed
maintenance and repair 'Work on electric circuits within cabinets, panels, and enclosures which had
live bare conductors exposed at the input of the energy isolation discoDl1ects for VOltages up to and

-including 480 volts .and other safety-related work practices such as, but not limited to,
precautionary techniques, proper PPE. and protective barriers were not used to protect against the
hazards of electric sbock and arc blast/flash.

(b) Throughout tbe U.S. Postal Service Minn-5t.Paul NDC; M1d1 Processing Equipment Mecbanics
(MPEMs). Building Equipment Mechanics (BEMs), and Blectro.nic Technicians (ETs) performed
troubleshooting on electric circuits within cabinets, panels, and enclosures where live parts were
not deenergized and other safety ~ted work practices such as, but not limited to. precautionary
techniques, proper PPE. and protective barriers were not use4 to protect against from the hazards
of e1ectrlc shock and arc blast/flash.

Abatement note: Abatement certification and documentatiOQ are required.

ABATEMENT DOClJMEL~TATlONREQl.lmED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 07/0712010

Page 8 of 13 0SBA-2(Rev.7/00)
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u.s. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Citation and Notiftcatjon of PenaItI

IDspection Number: 313177537
lnspectionDates:041l512010-04/1612010
Issuance Date: 06/25/2010

Company Name: U.S. Posml Service Miun-St.Paul NDe
Inspection Site: 3165 Lexington Avenue S., Eagan, MN 55121-2288

The alleged violations below have been gtOUped because they involve similar or related bazards that may increase
the potend.al for injury resulting from an accident.

-
Citation 1 Item 3a Type of Violation: Willful

29 CPR 1910.33S(a)(1)(i): Employees working in areas where there were potential electrical hazards were not
provided with, and/or did not use, electrical proteCtive equipment that was approptiate for the specific parts of the
body to be protected and for the work to be performed:

(a) Throughout the U.S. Postal Service Minn-St.Paul NDC; Mall Processing Eqnipment Mecbanies
(MPEMs). Building Equipment Mechanics (BEMs). and Electrooic Technic~ (ETs) were
exposed to electric shock and arc blast/flash hazards while perfonning troubleshOoting on live
electric clrcufts np to and iDcluding 480 volts, while perfonning verlfication teSting on circuits to
establish a deenergized. state during maintenance and repair work on electric circuits up to and
~ding 480 volts. and when performing nWntewmee and. repair on d.eenergized circuits within
cabinets. panels, and enclosUl'e$ which had other live exposed bare conductors present up to and
including 480 volts. Employees perf'Orming these tasks were not provided appropriate electrical
protective equipment such as, but not limited to, voltage rated gloves. leather protectors, flame
resistant clothinB, arc rated face shields, and arc rated hoods.

Abatement note: Abatement certification and documentation are requifed.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated:
Proposed Penalty;

07/0712010
$ 70000.00

Citrtion and Nolificatjon of Penalty .Page !I of 13 0SHA·2(Rcv.7/oo)
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u.s. Department of Labor
OCCUpational Safety and Health Administration

Citation and Not:i.rlCatiOD of Penalty

InspeetiGn Number~ 313177537
InspedionDates;04/1512010-04/161201O
Issuanee Date: 0612512010

Company Name: U_S. Postal Service Minn-St.Pau! Nne
Inspea.ion Site: 3165 Lexington Avenue S., Eagan. MN 55121-2288

Citation 1 Item 3b Type of Violation: Willful

29 CFR 1910.33S(a)(1)(iv}: Employees exposed to the danger of head ngury trom electric shock: or bums due to
contact with exposed energized parts did not weal-noncond:uetive head protection:- -
(a) Throughout me U.S. Posm18ervice MiJUl-St.Paul NDC; Mall ProcessiXlg Equipment Mechanics

(MPEMs), Bui1dini EqUipment Mechanics (BEMs), and Blectronie Tecbnieians (BTs) were
exposed to electric shock and arc blast/flash hazards while performing troubleshooting on live
.electric circuits up to and including 480 volts, while performing verification testiDg on circu.it$ to
establish a deenergized srate durins maintenance and repair work on electric circuits up to and
includins 480 volts, and when performing mainteDa.nce and repair on deenergized cl.rcu1ts withln'
cabinetS, panels. and enclosures which had other live exposed bare conductors present up to and
includillg 480 volts. Employees performing these tasks were not provided noncotllJuctive heM.
protection. .

Abatement note: Abatement certification and doeu.rnentatioD are required.

ABATEMENT DOC1.lMEN'TATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 07/07f21J10

see pages 1 tmough S or thi& Citation and Notification cd' Penab:y for irIt'onnatiorl on empJoyer afld employee riglus and rcspoosibilities.-
Citation and NO£iflcation of Penalty Pa,ge 10 of 13 0SHA...2(Rev. 11(0)
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u.s. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Citation and Notification of Penalt!

Inspection Number: 313117537
InspedionDates:04/15/2010-04/1612010
lssuance Date: 06125/2010

Company Name:
Inspection Site:

u.s. Postal service Mjnn-St.Paul NDe
3165 LexingtOn Avenue S., Eagan, MN 55121-2288

Citation 1 Item 3c Type of Violation: Willful

29 CFR 1910.33S(a)(1)(v): Employees exposed to the danger of injury to we eyes or face from electric arcs or
tlashes or from flying objects resulting from e]~ical explosion did not wear protective equipment foX' the eyes
or face: "": .....

(a) Throughout the U.S. Postal Service Minn-St.Paul NDC; Mail Processing Equipment MeohaDics
(MPEMs). Building Equipment Mechanics (BEMs). and Electronic Technicians (ETs) were
.exposed to electric shook: and arc blast/flash hazards while performin.g troubleshooting on live
electric circuits up to and including 480 volts, While performing veri1leation testing on circuits to.
establish a deenergized state during maintenance and repair work on electric circuits up to and
including 480 volts, and when performing .maintenance and repair OD deenergized circuits within
cabinets, panels, and enclosures which had other Jive exposed bare oonduetors preSent up to and
including 480 volts. Employees performing these tasks were not provided with protective arc rated.
face shields.

Abatement note: Abatement certification and documentation are required.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUlRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 07/07/2010

See pages 1 thrclup 5 of This CltaSiOIl and Notification of Pe:tJany for infonnation on employer and emp1Qyee rights and responsibil.i1ics.
. -

Citation and NotiflCafion of Penalty Page 11 of 13 0SHA-2(Rev. 7/0(l)
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U.s. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Citation and Notification ofPen~

IDspectfon Number: 313177537
~onDa~:04/1SI20]O~04/J612010

Isswmce Date: 06125/2010

Company Name: U.S. Postal Service Minn-St.Paul NDC
lDspec:don Site: 3165 lexingtOn Avenue S., Eagan, MN 55121-2288

Citatiog 1 Item 3d Type of Violation: Willful

29 CPR i910.33S(a)(2)(li): Protective shields, proteelive barriers, or insulating materials were Dot used to protect
eacl1 employee from shock. burns, or other electrically related injuries while that employee was working near
exposed energized parts which could ha'Ve been accidently contacted or while cla;Qgerous electric heating or arcing
could have occurred: .

(a) 1'broughout the U.S. Postal Service M1nn-St.Pau1 NDC; Mail Processing Equipment Mechanics
(MP:BMs), Building Equipment M~cs (nEMs), and Electronic Teclmiciaus (ETs) were
exposed fO electric shock and arc blast/Gash hazards wblle perf'olming trou.b1eshootiDg on live
electric circuits up to and including 480 volts, while performing verification testing on circuits to .
establish a deenergized state during maintenance and repair work on electric circuits up to and
inclUding 480 volts, and when pexfonni~ maintenantl! and repair on deenergized circuits within
cabinets, panels, and enclosures which had other live exposed. bare conductors present up to and
including 480 volts. Employees performing the5e tasks were not provided with protective baniers,
shields, or other insulating materials.

Abatement note: Abatement certification and documentation are requited.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 07/07/2010

Page 12 of 13 0SHA-2(R1:v. 7/00)
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U.s. Department of Labor
Occ:upati.onal Safety and Health Admi:aistration

. Cit;1tion and Notifigtjon of Pmalt!

InspeetioD NlIIDber: 313177537
IaspectioaDates:04/1512010 -04/16/2010
Isswmee Date: 0612512010

Company Name: U.S. Postal Service Minn-St.Panl NDe
IrJspectioIl Site: 3165 Lexington Avenue S.t Eagan. MN 55121·2288

.citation 2 Item 1 Type of Violation: Other

29 CPR 1910.333(b}(2)(i): The employer did not maintain a copy of the written procedures outlined in 29
CFR 1910.333 (b)(2):-
(a) u.s. Pomi Service M'mn-Bt.Paul NDC,APPS (Automated Package P8reel Sorter); B1ectrical

lockout procedures for the APPS main panel and capqcitor bank did not include electrical
wamings and. provisioDs related to pot:eIniaJ remaining live ciq:uitIY and capacitors which were
labeled on the.equipment itself.

Abatement note: Abatement certification required.

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated:
Proposed Penalty:

07/0712010
$ 0.00

see pages 1 tbrotlF S of t1lis Citation aM Norit'i<:atiOn ofPcDaJty far itdbrmat:i.gn on employer a.od employee rigbts.~ ~lbilitif:S.

Citazion. atld Norificatlan of Penalty Page 13 of 13 . 0SHA-2(Rev.71OO)


